
 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Worcester Township Community Hall – 1031 Valley Forge Rd., Worcester, PA 19490  
Worcester Township Planning Commission – Meeting Minutes - February 27, 2025 

Meeting Details 

• Date & Time: Thursday, February 27, 2025, 7:06 PM  

• Attendees: Planning Commission members (Tony Sherr, Bob Andorn,  Lee Koch, 
Michelle Greenawalt) 

Approval of Previous Minutes 

• December 12, 2024 Meeting Minutes: Motion to approve was made and seconded. 
Approved by unanimous voice vote. 

• January 23, 2025 Meeting Minutes: Motion to approve was made (with one 
member noting they were absent on Jan 23) and seconded. Approved by 
unanimous voice vote. 

Agenda Items Discussed 

Land Development Issue: 2991 Mohill Road – Discussion 

Overview: The Planning Commission reviewed a sketch plan for a proposed two-lot 
residential subdivision at 2991 Mohill Road (zoned R-175 Residential). The applicant’s 
engineer (Tim Woodrow) was unable to attend, so the Township Engineer provided a 
summary of the plan and issues. Key points from the discussion include: 

• Subdivision Details: The existing parcel is 3.42 acres. The proposal would create 
two lots: 

o Lot 1: ~66,854 sq. ft., containing the existing single-family house and 
accessory structures (two sheds, a greenhouse, and a fire pit). 

o Lot 2: ~82,141 sq. ft. (75,338 sq. ft. net buildable area) as a flag lot for a 
future single-family dwelling. 

• Utilities: Both the existing and future homes would be served by private well water 
and on-lot septic systems (no public water/sewer service). 

• Waiver Requests: The applicant submitted a waiver request letter on the afternoon 
of the meeting (Feb 27). Three waivers from the subdivision/land development 
ordinance were noted: 



 

1. Road Width: Relief from the requirement to widen the existing shared 
driveway/private road (Mohill Drive). It is currently ~17 feet wide, whereas ordinance 
requires 20 feet cartway width for a road serving these lots. The road serves three homes 
now; the new lot would make it four. The presence of utility poles along the road was noted 
as a constraint to widening. 

2. Private Street Standard: Related to the above, a waiver to allow the private road to 
remain at 17 feet instead of the required 20 feet. (This reinforces that Mohill Drive, while 
within a township right-of-way, is privately maintained – the township does not pave or 
plow it and receives no state “liquid fuels” funds for it.) 

3. Sidewalk and Curbing: A waiver from installing sidewalk and curb along the 
property’s frontage on the street. 

• Discussion & Concerns: Planning Commission members asked if there were any 
issues or comments on the proposal. There were no objections raised from the 
Commission or public at this sketch stage. One member sought clarification on the 
road widening issue, specifically about the utility poles interfering with widening the 
cartway. It was confirmed that the poles on one side of Mohill Drive would indeed 
prevent adding the full 2 feet of pavement on that side as recommended by the 
traffic review. It was also clarified that Mohill Drive, though within a township right-
of-way, is essentially a private lane not maintained by the Township. 

• Status: This plan was presented as a preliminary plan, although no vote or binding 
action was required. The Township Engineer had issued a review letter on February 
12, 2025, and the Township Traffic Engineer also issued two letters prior to the 
meeting, outlining technical comments. The applicant’s team has communicated 
that they will address all comments from these review letters in their next 
submission. 

• Next Steps: The Planning Commission did not take any formal action on the plan. 
Members agreed to wait for a revised plan to be submitted. They requested that the 
applicant return with their engineer present to discuss and address the technical 
issues and waiver requests in detail. The late submission of the waiver request letter 
on the day of the meeting was noted, and the Commission will formally consider 
those waivers at the time of preliminary/final plan review. The applicant has granted 
an extension of time. This item will come back to the Planning Commission at a 
future meeting after revisions. 

Methacton School District High School Redevelopment – Sketch Plan Presentation 



 

Overview: The Methacton School District presented a sketch plan for a major 
redevelopment of the Methacton High School campus. The high school property is 
approximately 63 acres (zoned Agricultural) located along Germantown Pike, with main 
access from Kriebel Mill Road and additional frontage on Mill Road. The school district’s 
team (attorney, engineers, architect, and officials) walked through the conceptual plans 
and feedback from township consultants. This was an informational discussion; no formal 
application has been submitted yet beyond the sketch plan. Key points and discussion 
highlights include: 

• Project Scope: The district proposes to construct a new high school building on 
the existing campus while the current school remains in operation. Once the new 
building is completed and ready for occupancy, the old school building will be 
demolished. The vacated area would then be used to create new parking lots, 
upgraded athletic fields, and possibly a new field house and other facilities. This 
phased approach allows continuity of school operations. The overall goal is to 
modernize the campus and address longstanding issues with the current facilities. 

• Objectives and Needs: Several needs are driving the project: 

o Parking Shortage: The existing campus has about 602 marked parking 
spaces, which has proven insufficient. Students and visitors currently 
overflow onto nearby residential streets (e.g. parking along Anvil Drive and at 
a church across the street) and even park on grass or unmarked areas on 
campus during large events. The redevelopment will significantly increase 
on-site parking capacity. The sketch plan shows approximately 875 parking 
spaces (an increase of ~273 spaces), which is intended to accommodate all 
student drivers and staff, plus provide extra capacity for events like football 
games. This should eliminate the need for parking on neighborhood streets 
and improve the situation for the community. 

o Traffic Circulation and Safety: Presently, there are six different 
driveways/access points along Kriebel Mill Road serving the school 
(including separate entrances for the administration building, various parking 
areas, and the bus depot). This causes internal traffic conflicts among buses, 
parent drop-offs, student drivers, and staff. The plan proposes to 
consolidate entrances down to three access points on Kriebel Mill Road to 
streamline traffic flow and reduce conflict points. In addition, a new 
dedicated bus and emergency access road is proposed from Mill Road (on 
the opposite side of the campus), which will be used only by school buses 
and emergency vehicles. By separating bus traffic from student/parent 



 

vehicle traffic, the design will improve on-site safety and reduce congestion 
at peak times. A new roundabout is envisioned at the main entrance to help 
manage inbound and outbound traffic smoothly and prevent backups on 
Kriebel Mill Road. Parent drop-off/pick-up lanes would be extended on-site 
(in a chevron layout) to keep waiting cars off the public road. 

o Modernized Facilities: The current school building has various issues (aging 
infrastructure, outdated design for educational needs, etc.). Building a new 
facility allows the district to address these and incorporate modern 
educational standards. The project will also retain or upgrade athletic 
facilities: the existing stadium will remain, as will the bus garage, auxiliary 
turf fields, varsity baseball field, and tennis courts. New or reconfigured 
fields will be added where the old building is removed, including retaining 
junior varsity baseball/softball fields that were initially considered for 
relocation. A new field house near the stadium is being considered as well. 

o Utilities and Stormwater: The campus is currently served by public water 
but relies on an on-site wastewater treatment plant (private sewer). The 
plan is to connect the school to public sewer service. This would involve 
constructing a pump station on campus to send sewage to the existing 
public sewer system (ultimately connecting to the Grange Pump Station in 
Lower Providence Township). Stormwater management will be significantly 
improved; at present, the site has very limited stormwater infrastructure 
(only two small basins by some newer turf fields). The redevelopment will 
include modern stormwater facilities to control runoff from the increased 
impervious surfaces (roofs, parking lots), complying with current regulations. 

• Zoning Relief Requirements: Because of the scope and design of the project, 
several aspects will require zoning relief (variances or conditional use approvals). 
The presenters outlined anticipated zoning challenges: 

o Building Height: The new academic building is planned to be three stories 
tall in portions (the rear classroom wing), which likely exceeds the township’s 
height limit in this district. A variance will be needed for the building height. 

o Impervious Coverage: The zoning limit for impervious surface in the 
Agricultural district is 40%. The existing campus already exceeds that 
(around 43% impervious). The redevelopment, with additional parking, is 
projected to further increase impervious coverage (sketch plan showed 



 

about 45%). This expansion of non-pervious area will need a variance for the 
overage (to legalize the new impervious percentage). 

o Front Yard Setback/Parking in Front Yard: The ordinance requires a 250-
foot front yard setback along Germantown Pike within which no parking is 
allowed. Currently, some parking encroaches into that setback (a legal non-
conformity). The new plan proposes a large parking area and a field house 
that would extend into that 250-ft front yard buffer. The district will seek relief 
to allow parking (and the small building) in that front setback area. 

o Sports Field Lighting: The project includes adding or upgrading lights for the 
athletic fields (specifically varsity baseball and softball fields at a corner of 
the site). Modern field lights can be tall and bright. One planned light pole 
location may be too close to the property line, and the lights in general may 
exceed height or glare limits. This triggers the need for approvals: likely a 
conditional use (as required by ordinance for tall outdoor lighting in 
residential proximity) and possibly a variance. The team acknowledged they 
will need to go before the Board of Supervisors for conditional use approval 
for the lighting. 

o Parking Lot Lighting Height: Related to lighting, the zoning ordinance caps 
parking lot light poles at 12 feet height in this district. To adequately 
illuminate large parking areas, the plan will use industry-standard poles 
(often 20 feet or more). A variance will be sought to allow typical parking lot 
lighting heights (commonly around 20 feet) for safety and practicality. 

o Steep Slope Disturbance: The high school property has a rolling, tiered 
topography – it slopes down in terraces from the high point at Germantown & 
Kriebel Mill toward lower areas near the proposed bus access road. Some 
existing man-made slopes (berms or embankments) will need to be 
regraded/disturbed to construct the new improvements. The ordinance 
restricts disturbance of steep slopes over a certain grade, so the project will 
require a variance to disturb those slopes as part of regrading. 

• Presentation and Feedback: The project team displayed slides of the site, existing 
conditions, and the conceptual layout. They have had preliminary meetings with 
township staff and have received initial review letters from the Township Engineer 
and the Township’s planning and traffic consultants). The team expressed 
willingness to address all comments as the design progresses. They emphasized 
improvements the plan brings, especially in parking and traffic management, which 



 

will benefit both the school operations and the surrounding community. Planning 
Commission members and consultants asked questions and provided feedback: 

o Timeline: The Commission inquired about the anticipated timeline. The 
school district hopes to start construction as soon as possible once 
approvals are in place, with the goal of aligning the opening of the new school 
with a new academic year. Because it’s a functioning school, timing is critical 
– they aim to minimize disruption and ensure the new building is ready for 
students by the fall of the targeted year. 

o Traffic Study: The school’s traffic engineer (Matt Hammond, TPD) noted that 
they have begun a detailed traffic study. Traffic counts were conducted last 
year while school was in session to establish baseline volumes. Although the 
new building will be larger, student enrollment is not expected to increase 
significantly, so the daily traffic demand should remain roughly the same. 
However, with reconfigured access points and on-site circulation, the traffic 
flow should improve. The study will analyze key intersections around the 
school to determine if any off-site roadway improvements or signal 
adjustments are needed. The Commission and the Township’s traffic 
consultant will review this study once completed. 

o Community Impact: Commissioners acknowledged that the added parking 
and removal of on-street overflow are positive steps. They encouraged the 
design team to continue considering buffering and outreach to neighbors, 
especially regarding lighting and traffic changes. The school district had 
already held a neighborhood meeting to gather local input, which brought the 
parking issues to light. By addressing these concerns (parking and reducing 
access points), the plan is attempting to be responsive to community 
feedback. 

o Next Steps: No action was taken by the Planning Commission on the sketch 
plan (sketch plans are not subject to approval). The school district will 
proceed with the required zoning relief applications in the coming months 
and continue refining the plans. They will incorporate feedback from the 
Commission and the consultants’ review letters. A full Preliminary/Final 
Land Development Plan is expected to be submitted once zoning matters 
are addressed. At that time, the Planning Commission will formally review 
the plan and provide recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. The 
Commission will also look for a complete traffic impact study and detailed 



 

engineering plans in that future submission. This item will come back for 
further review when ready. 

o Public Comment: John Antonelli expressed concern about the cost of the 
project and what seems, to him, the lack of consideration of a renovation. 

Jim Mollick echoed the comments made by Mr. Antonelli.  

 

Adjournment 

With no further business or public comment, the meeting was adjourned at 8:55 PM.  



F:\Projects\MIK-03\208161-01\01_COR\2025-01-22 1038 WindyHillRd_P-F_ Twp cover ltr.docx

January 22, 2025

Mr. Dan DeMeno, Township Manager
Worcester Township
1721 Valley Forge Road
P.O. Box 767
Worcester, PA 19490

RE: 1038 Windy Hill Road – 2 Lot Subdivision
Minor Subdivision Plan Application
Bursich Project No.: MIK-01 / 208161.01

Dear Mr DeMeno:

With regard to the above referenced project, please find enclosed the following materials in connection 
with a Preliminary/Final Land Development application:

1. Eighteen (18) copies of the Preliminary/Final Subdivision Plans, Sheets 1 - 12 of 12, dated 
1/15/2025;

2. Three (3) copies of the Post Construction Stormwater Report, dated January, 2025;
3. One (1) original and eighteen copies of (18) of the Waiver Request letter, dated 1/15/25;
4. One (1) copy of the completed and signed Township Subdivision and Land Development 

Application;
5. One (1) copy of the completed and signed Township Extension of Time form;
6. One (1) copy of the completed Act 247 application form to the Montgomery County Planning 

Commission, ready for Township review and signature;
7. Check in the amount of $2,000.00 for the Township Application Fee;
8. Check in the amount of $6,000.00 for the Township Escrow;
9. Eighteen (18) copies of the of County Tax Parcel information (was part of the lands conveyed 

to Arden Reserve, LLC by John Huganir on 8/31/2023 ;
10. One (1) USB drive containing a PDF file of all documents;

Arden Reserve, LLC (Applicant) proposes to subdivide a 5.39 acre parcel into two (2) lots, each to contain 
a single family detached dwelling.  The parcel was identified as “Residual Lands” on the “Hugnair 
Property Subdivision” that was previously approved in 2023 and is currently under construction.  Each 
proposed lot will have driveway access from the existing Windy Hill Road cul-de-sac, and will be served 
by an individual on-lot sewage disposal system and an on-lot well for domestic water service.



1038 Windy Hill Road – Minor Subdivision
January 22, 2025

Page 2 of 2

2

The site was included in the stormwater design and NPDES permit for the Huganir Property Subdivision 
project but did not include provisions for improvements for new dwellings.  Therefore, the attached 
stormwater report includes provisions for improvements of the two lots and expands on the previously 
approved plans, and a modification to the NPDES permit will be applied for.

A Component 2 Sewage Facilities Planning Module is being prepared (DEP Code No. 1-46962-222-2) and 
our office will coordinate as needed with the Township and other agencies.  Soil testing was done by 
Penns Trail Environmental, LLC.

As always, please feel free to contact me with questions or if you require additional information me at 
484-941-0427 or nfeola@vancleefengineering.com.  Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Very Truly Yours,
Van Cleef Engineering Associates, LLC

Sr. Project Manager

Enclosures

cc: Michael Clement, Arden Reserve, LLC (via email only)











ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH

Stop - Call Before You Dig!

Pennsylvania One Call System, Inc.
811  or  1-800-242-1776

MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAN  FOR

WORCESTER TOWNSHIP  -  MONTGOMERY  COUNTY
PENNSYLVANIA

“ ”

1038 WINDY HILL ROAD
2-LOT SUBDIVISION



ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH



ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH



ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH

“
”

“ ”

·

·

·

·



ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH



ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH

Stop - Call Before You Dig!

Pennsylvania One Call System, Inc.
811  or  1-800-242-1776



PLACED 5' O.C.

  NTS

  NTS

DOUBLE 24" DIAMETER SOCKS IN PYRAMIDAL 
2. 18" DIAMETER FILTER SOCK MAY BE STACKED ONTO
1.  INSTALL ON FLAT GRADE FOR OPTIMUM PERFORMANCE
NOTES:

PLAN

WATER INTO FILTER RING
DIRECT CONCRETE WASHOUT

ON UPSLOPE SIDE OF FILTER RING
FILTER SOCK.  4' MIN. OVERLAP
24" DIAMETER COMPOST 

SECTION

WATER IS 50% OF FILTER RING HEIGHT
MAXIMUM DEPTH OF CONCRETE

2" X 2" X 36" WOODEN STAKES
FILTER SOCK
24" DIAMETER COMPOST

PLACED 5' O.C.
2" X 2" X 36" WOODEN STAKES

COMPOST SOCK WASHOUT DETAIL

CONFIGURATION FOR ADDED HEIGHT.

PLACED AT THE LOCATION OF THE WASHOUT PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE SOCKS.
3. A SUITABLE IMPERVIOUS GEOMEMBRANE SHALL BE 

ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH

ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE



ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH

AREA OF
EXCAVATION /
DISTURBANCE

STABILIZED
DISCHARGE
AREA

RED
IR

EC
TE

D F
LO

W

FLO
W

FLO
W

MIN
. S

LO
PE

: 1
%

18" DIAMETER FILTREXX® SOXX™
(ALSO AVAILABLE IN 8", 12" AND 24"
DIAMETERS)

5' AT HIGH END OF DEVICE
POINTED UPHILL TO PREVENT

END-AROUND FLOW

5' AT LOW END OF DEVICE
POINTED DOWNHILL

TO PREVENT PONDING

2" X 2" X 36"
WOODEN STAKES
PLACED 10' O.C.

UNDISTURBED AREA

2:1 M
AX.

SLO
PE

NOTES:
1.  REMOVE SEDIMENT FROM THE
UPSLOPE SIDE OF THE SOXX™ WHEN
ACCUMULATION HAS REACHED 12 OF
EFFECTIVE HEIGHT OF SOXX™
2.  SLOPES GREATER THAN 5% MAY
REQUIRE ADDITIONAL STABILIZATION
PRACTICES
3.  SOXX™ MAY BE SEEDED AT THE TIME
OF INSTALLATION

FILTREXX® RUNOFF DIVERSION

FLO
W

4" MINIMUM FREEBOARD

4" MINIMUM FREEBOARD

MAX. WATER LEVEL

MAX. WATER LEVEL

18" DIAMETER FILTREXX® SOXX™
(ALSO AVAILABLE IN 8", 12" AND 24"
DIAMETERS)

18" DIAMETER FILTREXX® SOXX™
(ALSO AVAILABLE IN 8", 12" AND 24"
DIAMETERS)

2" X 2" X 36" WOODEN
STAKES PLACED 10' O.C.

2" X 2" X 36" WOODEN
STAKES PLACED 10' O.C.

2:1 MAX. SLOPE

SINGLE INSTALLATION SECTION
NTS

PYRAMID INSTALLATION SECTION
NTS

2:1 MAX. SLOPE

FILTREXX® RUNOFF DIVERSION SECTIONS
NTS

“ ”

® ™

™ ™

“ ”



”

”

ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH



ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH



C

ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH

C



·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

ASSOCIATES

w w w .  b  u  r  s  i  c  h  .  c  o  m

ENGINEERS,  LAND  SURVEYORS,  LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECTS
2129  EAST  HIGH  STREET
POTTSTOWN,  PA  19464

610.323.4040

BURSICH



January 15, 2025

Mr. Dan DeMeno, Township Manager
Worcester Township
1721 Valley Forge Road
P.O. Box 767
Worcester, PA 19490

RE: Waiver (Modification) Requests
1038 Windy Hill Road – 2 Lot Subdivision
Worcester Township, Montgomery Co., PA
Bursich Project No.: MIK-01 / 208161.01

Dear Mr. DeMeno:

On behalf of Arden Reserve, LLC (Applicant) in coordination with the minor subdivision plans filed for 
the above referenced project, the following are the formal written modifications (i.e. “waiver”) 
requested from the requirements of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land Development 
Ordinance – Chapter 130:

• §130-28.F.(7) – a waiver for replacement of all trees over 6” caliper in excess of the permitted 25% 
removal.  The site is wooded, much of which will remain, and the disturbed areas provide the area 
needed to accommodate the dwelling, driveway, septic, well, and usable yard areas for each lot.

• §130-28.G.(5) –a waiver to allow the existing woods/vegetation to suffice to satisfy the perimeter 
landscape buffer requirements.

Should you have any questions or need further information, please feel free to contact me at 484-941-
0427 or nfeola@vancleefengineering.com.

Very Truly Yours,
Van Cleef Engineering Associates, LLC

Sr. Project Manager

Cc: Michael Clement, Esq, Arden Reserve, LLC (via email only)



  

 

 

 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
NEIL K. MAKHIJA, CHAIR 
JAMILA H. WINDER, VICE CHAIR 
THOMAS DIBELLO, COMMISSIONER 
 
WWW.MONTGOMERYCOUNTYPA.GOV 

 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  
MONTGOMERY COUNTY • PO BOX 311  

NORRISTOWN, PA 19404 - 0311 
 

610 - 278 - 3722 
PLANNING@MONTGOMERYCOUNTYPA.GOV 

 
SCOTT FRANCE, AICP 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 

 

 

February 28, 2025 
 
Dan DeMeno, Manager 
Worcester Township 
1721 South Valley Forge Road 
P.O. Box 767 
Worcester, PA 19490 
 
Re:  MCPC #21-0025-003 
Plan Name: 1038 Windy Hill Road – 2 lot subdivision 
(2 lots comprising 5.39 acres) 
Situate: Windy Hill Road at Germantown Pike 
Worcester Township 
 
Dear Mr. DeMeno: 

We have reviewed the above-referenced preliminary subdivision and land development plan in accordance with 
Section 502 of Act 247, "The Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code," as you requested on January 27, 2025. 
We forward this letter as a report of our review. 

BACKGROUND  

The applicant, Arden Reserve LLC, has submitted a preliminary plan proposing the development of a 5.39 acre 
tract for 2 detached homes in the R-100 Residential District.  An adjacent tract, subdivided from the proposal 
being reviewed, was previously approved for 8 single-family detached homes which appear to be under 
construction.  An access road from these 8 previously approved homes runs through the subject property, and 
will overlap with the driveway access for what is currently labelled Lot 2.  Waivers have been requested for this 
development proposal to allow for the existing wooded areas on the site to serve as landscape buffers, and for 
the applicant to not have to replace all trees over 6” caliper that are removed during the development process.  
On-lot sewer and water service is proposed. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Montgomery County Planning Commission (MCPC) generally supports the applicant‘s proposal, however, in 
the course of our review we have identified the following issues that the applicant and township may wish to 
consider prior to final plan approval.  Our comments are as follows: 

 



- 2 - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Manager  February 28, 2025 

 

 REVIEW COMMENTS  

SITE DESIGN 

1) Landscaping.  One of the waivers proposed for this site is for Section 130-28.F.7 for the replacement of trees 
over 6” in DBH.  As was mentioned in our previous letter concerning the adjacent tract, the township may 
wish to consider other ways of allowing the applicant to comply with this requirement, such as allowing for 
trees to be planted elsewhere or to allow for a fee-in-lieu of planting the trees on the site. 

TRANSPORTATION 

1) Emergency Access Easement.  The township should ensure that any necessary legal mechanisms are in place 
to allow for the emergency access driveway to overlap with the everyday driveway access for Lot 2. 

CONCLUSION 

We wish to reiterate that MCPC generally supports the applicant’s proposal but we believe that our suggested 
revisions will better achieve Worcester Township’s planning objectives. 

Please note that the review comments and recommendations contained in this report are advisory to the 
municipality and final disposition for the approval of any proposal will be made by the municipality.  

Should the governing body approve a final plat of this proposal, the applicant must present the plan to our office 
for seal and signature prior to recording with the Recorder of Deeds office. A paper copy bearing the municipal 
seal and signature of approval must be supplied for our files. Please print the assigned MCPC number #21-0025-
003 on any plans submitted for final recording. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

Anne Leavitt-Gruberger, County Planning Manager 
anne.leavitt-gruberger@montgomerycountypa.gov – 610-278-3727 
 
c: Michael Clement, Wisler Pearlstine LLC, Applicant’s Representative 

Christian Jones, Assistant Township Manager 

Attachment A: Aerial Image of Site 
Attachment B: Reduced Copy of Applicant’s Proposed Site Plan 

 

mailto:anne.leavitt-gruberger@montgomerycountypa.gov


- Attachment A - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Manager 

 

February 28, 2025 

 

ATTACHMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



- Attachment B - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Manager 

 

February 28, 2025 

 

 



 

425 Commerce Drive Suite 200, Fort Washington, PA 19034 

P: 215.283.9444 

bowman.com 

March 6, 2025 

 

 

Mr. Dan Demeno    

Township Manager    

Worcester Township    

1721 Valley Forge Road    

P.O. Box 767      

Worcester, PA 19490 

 

Attention:    Christian R. Jones, Assistant Township Manager 

      Mr. Robert D’Hulster, Public Works Director     

 

RE: Traffic Review #1 – Minor Subdivision Plans 

 1038 Windy Hill Road – Two single-family lots  

 Worcester Township, Montgomery County, PA     

 Project No. 313982-25-003      

Dear Dan: 

In response to the Township’s request, Bowman Consulting Group (Bowman) has completed our initial 

traffic engineering review associated with the proposed subdivision to be located at 1038 Windy Hill Road 

in Worcester Township, Montgomery County, PA.  It is our understanding that the proposed subdivision 

involves subdividing Parcel 67-00-04162-00-1 into two lots (Lots 1 and 2) with a single-family home 

proposed to be constructed on each lot.   These two lots were shown as a single Lot #9 on the previously 

approved and recorded plans for the “Huganir Property Subdivision”.  Access to then subdivided Lots 1 and 

2 will be provided via individual driveway connections to the existing, recently constructed cul-de-sac that 

was extended at the northern end of Windy Hill Road where an emergency access easement was then 

connected to/from the remaining 8 lots of the Huganir residential subdivision project that have access to 

Artmar Road.  

The following documents were received and reviewed in preparation of our comments: 

 Minor Subdivision Plans – 1038 Windy Hill Road, prepared by Bursich Associates, a division of Van 

Cleef Engineering, dated January 15, 2025. 

 Waiver Request Letter – 1038 Windy Hill Road, prepared by Bursich Associates, a division of Van 

Cleef Engineering, dated January 15, 2025. 

 

Based on our review of the documents listed above, Bowman offers the following comments for 

consideration by the Township and action by the applicant: 

1. Access to Lot 2 is partially located within the emergency access easement for the adjacent 

residential development located on the Huganir property.  Documentation and approval of this 

condition (i.e., access easement) between the applicant and the property owner of the emergency 

access easement to/from the Huganir subdivision (if different than the applicant) must be provided 

in subsequent submissions.     

 



Mr. Dan Demeno 

  March 6, 2025 

  Project No. 313982-25-003 

 

2 of 4  bowman.com 

2. There is only one road, Windy Hill Road, that accesses West Germantown Pike and currently serves 

approximately 18 homes/businesses.  The proposed development adds two additional homes that 

will be served by a single point of access to an adjacent roadway network.  Therefore, we 

recommend that emergency access be available also to the proposed subdivision Lots 1 and 2, as 

well as other existing Windy Hill Road residents, through the emergency access easement 

comprised of grass pavers that extends to/from the adjacent residential development of 8 lots for 

the Huganir property.  A note should be added to the plans for the owner of future Lot 2 to notify 

them that emergency access to/from Windy Hill Road and the adjacent neighborhood also utilizes 

a portion of the Lot #2 driveway, since a portion of the driveway is contained within the emergency 

access easement.   

 

3. Since access to the proposed two-lot subdivision is ultimately provided through the intersection of 

West Germantown Pike and Windy Hill Road, vehicle sight distances must be provided on the plan 

for a vehicle exiting Windy Hill Road and looking in both directions at 14.5 feet back from the edge 

of the closest travel lane on West Germantown Pike, as well as the sight distance looking ahead 

and to the rear for a vehicle making a left-turn from West Germantown Pike onto Windy Hill Road.  

It appears that the egressing sight distance looking to the left may be restricted due to an 

embankment and bush, and egressing sight distance looking to the right may be restricted due to 

a sign.  The sight distances must be confirmed and if the clear and minimum safe stopping sight 

distance is physically prohibited due to the vegetation/signage along West Germantown Pike, it 

must be resolved to meet at least the minimum safe stopping sight distances for the posted speed 

in this area.  

 

4. According to Section 130-16.C(1)(a)[4] of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance 

and the classification of the roadway in the Township, Windy Hill Road should have a cartway width 

of 32 feet, which may be reduced to as low as 28 feet when conditions may be unreasonable for 

this widening for a publicly maintained roadway.   The plans currently show an approximate 20-

foot cartway width along the Windy Hill Road site frontage, thereby not satisfying the ordinance 

requirement.  The plans should be revised to show at least a 28-foot cartway width along the Windy 

Hill Road site frontage, or a waiver needs to be requested from this ordinance requirement and 

approved by the Board of Supervisors.   

 

5. According to Section 130-16.C(1)(a)[5][b][v] of the Subdivision and Land Development 

Ordinance, cul-de-sacs shall not be more than 500 feet in length.  The existing and recently 

constructed cul-de-sac at the end of Windy Hill Road is approximately 1,200 feet in length, thereby 

not satisfying the ordinance requirement.  Possibly a waiver was granted under the original land 

development application for the Huganir property residential subdivision along with the emergency 

access easement.  While the approximate 1,200-foot-long cul-de-sac is now an existing condition, 

since the proposed two-lot subdivision is providing additional access to the cul-de-sac, we 

recommend that a waiver be requested from this ordinance requirement and approved by the 

Board of Supervisors for this application.   

 

6. According to Section 130-18.A of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance, sidewalk 

should be provided along the site frontage of Windy Hill Road.  The plans currently do not show 

any sidewalk along the Windy Hill Road site frontage, thereby not satisfying the ordinance 

requirement.   The plans should be revised to show sidewalk along the Windy Hill Road site 

frontage, or a waiver will need to be requested from this ordinance requirement and approved by 



Mr. Dan Demeno 

  March 6, 2025 

  Project No. 313982-25-003 

 

3 of 4  bowman.com 

the Board of Supervisors.  We note for the Supervisors that there is no sidewalk provided along any 

section of Windy Hill Road between the cul-de-sac and West Germantown Pike.   

 

The Board of Supervisors may decide to consider deferring this sidewalk obligation that is required 

of the applicant until such a time as may be required by the Township along the subject property, 

whether under present or future land ownership, and at no cost to Worcester Township.  However, 

if the Board of Supervisors grants this waiver, we recommend to them and the Township Solicitor 

that the applicant then provide a contribution in an escrow to the Township in an amount similar 

to the cost to install said improvements to be used for similar improvements in the vicinity of the 

site or within the Township. 

 

7. According to Section 130-18.B of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance, curbing 

should be provided along the site frontage of Windy Hill Road.   The plans currently do not show 

any curbing along the Windy Hill Road site frontage, thereby not satisfying the ordinance 

requirement.   However, a waiver was granted in the Worcester Township Board of Supervisors 

resolution 2022-22, dated December 21, 2022, for the Huganir Property Subdivision Plan for final 

land development that waived the requirement for curbing to be installed along the extension of 

the cul-de-sac of Windy Hill Road.  Therefore, a new or additional waiver may not be required.   We 

also note for the Supervisors that there is no curbing located along any section of Windy Hill Road 

between the cul-de-sac and the southern side of the driveways for 1011 and 1012 Windy Hill Road 

where then curbing continues along both sides of Windy Hill Road to the curb radii with West 

Germantown Pike. 

 

8. The Township Fire Marshal should review the proposed two-lot subdivision for accessibility and 

circulation needs of emergency apparatus along Windy Hill Road in their review of the plans.  Ensure 

that any correspondence, including any review comments and/or approvals by the fire marshal, is 

included in subsequent submissions.  

 

9. Additional details, including driveway radii and widths, should be provided on the plan to ensure 

compliance with Section 130-17.B(3) of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance.  

 

10. The plans must be signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer licensed to practice in the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania that was in responsible charge of the work as required by Section 

130-35.1.A(2)(c) of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance. 

 

11. According to the Township’s Roadway Sufficiency Analysis, the proposed development is located 

in Transportation Service Area South, which has a corresponding impact fee of $3,125 per “new” 

weekday afternoon peak hour trip and the applicant will be required to pay a Transportation Impact 

Fee in accordance with the Township’s Transportation Impact Fee Ordinance.  Based on Land Use 

Code 210 (Single-Family Detached Housing) in the Institute of Transportation Engineers 

publication, Trip Generation, 11th Edition, a single-family home on Lots 1 and 2 would generate two 

“new” trips during the weekday afternoon peak hour resulting in a transportation impact fee of 

$6,250.  These two new single-family residential lots are additional building lots that serve as an 

extension of land development from the Huganir property residential subdivision.   

 

12. Based on our review, the applicant should address the aforementioned comments and provide 

revised plans to the Township and our office for further review and approval recommendations. 

The applicant's engineer must provide a response letter that describes how each specific 



Mr. Dan Demeno 

  March 6, 2025 

  Project No. 313982-25-003 

 

4 of 4  bowman.com 

review comment has been addressed, where each can be found in the plan set or materials, 

as opposed to general responses. This will aid in the detailed review and subsequent review 

timeframes. 

 

We trust that this review letter responds to your request.  If you or the Township have any questions, or 

require clarification, please contact me, Michelle Eve, P.E., or Brian Jones, PTP, TOPS. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Casey A. Moore, P.E    

EVP/Regional Manager - Transportation 

    

CAM/MEE/BMJ 

 

cc: John Evarts, P.E., CKS Engineers (Township Engineer) 

 Wendy Feiss McKenna, Esq. (Township Solicitor) 

 Michael Clement, Esq., Wisler Pearlstine, LLP (Applicant’s Attorney) 

 Nicholas Feola, P.E., Bursich Associates, A Division of Van Cleef Engineering (Applicant’s Engineer) 
 
V:\313982 - Worcester Twp PA\313982-25-003 (TRA) - 1038 Windy Hill Road\Engineering\Submissions\2025-01-27 Subdivision Plans\Review\2025-03-06 Review Letter #1 - 1038 

Windy Hill Road (finalized).docx 



  

 
 
March 20, 2025 
Ref: #7201-175 

 
 
 
Township of Worcester 
1721 Valley Forge Road 
PO Box 767 
Worcester, PA 19490-0767 
 
Attention: Dan DeMeno, Township Manager 
 
Reference: 1038 Windy Hill Road 
  Parcel No. 67-00-04162-00-1 

Two-Lot Subdivision Plan Review 
Worcester Twp. LD 

 
Dear Dan: 
 
 Our office is in receipt of your request for review of a two-lot subdivision plan for the above-
referenced site. The submission consists of 12 sheets prepared by Bursich and Associates dated 
January 15, 2025. 
 
 Also included with this submission is a Post Construction Stormwater Report dated 
January 2025, a Subdivision and Land Development Application, an application form to the 
Montgomery County Planning Commission, and a signed Township Extension of Time form. 
 

The applicant proposes the subdivision of an existing 5.39-acre parcel in the R-100 
Residential Zoning District to create two lots as follows: Lot 1, 74,532 sf and Lot 2, 160,348 sf. 
The proposed dwellings are to be served by private (well) water service and private sanitary 
sewage disposal (on-lot systems). 

 
The subject parcel was Lot 9 of the previously approved “Huganir property” subdivision. 

The site contains an existing stormwater basin and an emergency access for the subdivision. The 
Applicant proposes to construct a single-family detached dwelling on each lot with access to 
Windy Hill Road.  

  
We offer the following comments for consideration by the Township: 

 
I. ZONING ORDINANCE 
 

The following comments are based upon the Worcester Township Zoning Ordinance (ZO): 
 
1. As per Section 150-203.A, no part of any detention basin shall occupy more than 25% of 

the required yard area measured as to linear dimension or surface area. The plans must 
be revised to show the percentage of detention basin in the yard area. 

 



CKS ENGINEERS   March 20, 2025 

  Ref: #7201-175 
  Page 2 
 
2. All manufactured parts of any detention basin shall be screened by evergreen plantings 

so as to be not visible from off of the property. No plantings at the basin are shown. 
(Section 150-203.D) 

 
3. In calculating the lot area, the following shall be excluded: (Section 150-9) 
 
 a. Any access portion of a lot with a width dimension of less than 70 feet. 
 
 b. Any area within a floodplain. 
 
 These areas should be indicated on the Lot Table for Lot 2 as shown on Sheet 4 and the 

net lot area for Lot 2 may need to be adjusted accordingly. 
 
4. Floodplain areas based upon floodplain soils shall be considered part of the Floodplain 

Conservation District and subject to the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. Rt – 
Rowland soils is a floodplain soil. (Section 150-135.C.1.b) 

 
5. Up to one half of any required yard setback area on an individual lot may extend into the 

Floodplain Conservation District. (Section 150-138.A.1) The rear yard setback for Lot 2 
should be revised if more than one half the rear yard is within the Floodplain Conservation 
District. 

 
6. The Riparian Corridor should be labeled on the plans. Buildings and any other type of 

permanent structure are prohibited within the Riparian Corridor Conservation District. 
(Section 150-146.8A). The rear yard setback for Lot 2 should be revised.  
 

II. SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
 

The following comments are based upon the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land 
Development Ordinance (SLDO): 
 
1. We note the following waivers have been requested by the Applicant: 
 
 a. From Section 130-28.F.(7) requiring replacement of all trees over 6” caliper in 

excess of the permitted 25% removal. 
 
 b. From Section 130-28.G.(5) to allow the existing woods/vegetation to suffice to 

satisfy the perimeter landscape buffer requirements. 
 
2. The Supervisors shall require the subdivider, developer, or builder to obtain from the 

Montgomery County Department of Health certificates of approval of the type and 
construction methods to be employed in the installation of the individual water supply 
system and approval of the sewage disposal facilities. (Section 130-14.F&G) 

 
3. Building setback lines shall be measured from the nearest side of an easement to the 

proposed building. (Section 130-22.B.1) The front yard setback on Lot 1 and the side yard 
of Lot 2 should be revised. 

 



CKS ENGINEERS   March 20, 2025 

  Ref: #7201-175 
  Page 3 
 
4. The minimum driveway paving width of 10 feet should be dimensioned on the plans. 

(Section 130-17.B.3) 
 
5. Nothing shall be permitted to be placed or put within the area of an easement. (Section 

130-22.B.2)  
 
 We note the driveway for Lot 2 is relocated within an emergency access easement. A note 

must be added to the plan indicating the parking or storage of vehicles is prohibited in the 
portion of driveway in the access easement. 

 
6. It should be determined if an easement should be shown for the basin discharge within 

Lot 1. (Section 130-22.B.3) 
 
7. The locations of existing wells on adjacent properties should be located to verify that the 

proposed absorption fields are not closer than 100 feet uphill from the well. (Section 130-
26.B.2.d) 

 
8. Sheet 3 indicates an approximate location of 100’ x 100’ existing tree survey area on the 

adjacent Lot 5 of the previous “Huganir” subdivision. The Township should determine if 
this survey area can be used to determine the existing trees that are proposed to be 
removed on Lots 1 and 2. (Section 130-28.E) As noted above, a waiver has been 
requested to not replace the calculated 84 caliper inches of trees that would be removed 
over the allowable 25% of woodland disturbance. 

 
9. Basin landscaping from the approved “Huganir” subdivision should be incorporated into 

the landscape requirements shown on Sheet 5. (Section 130-28.G.7) 
 
III. GRADING, STORMWATER MANAGEMENT, AND EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION 

CONTROL 
 
The following comments are based upon the requirements of Worcester Township’s 

Stormwater Management Ordinances (SMO): 
 

1. The “Huganir Property” subdivision has an approved stormwater management plan and a 
PADEP NPDES permit which includes the previously single Lot 9. However, no 
construction was proposed except for the proposed stormwater basin on this lot. The 
Applicant proposes to modify the permit to include the proposed improvement to these 
two lots. 
 

2. A revised Stormwater Management report has been included with this submission which 
indicates that the only change necessary to account for the subdivision is raising the top 
of grate elevation of the outlet structure for Basin 001-1.  

 
 No provisions have been made to revise the outlet structures on these plans as proposed 

in the stormwater report. 
 
3. We recommend raising the proposed dwelling unit elevation on Lot 1 to be higher than the 

surface water within the basin. 
 



CKS ENGINEERS   March 20, 2025 

  Ref: #7201-175 
  Page 4 
 
4. The location of sump pumps and rood drain discharge must be shown on the plans. 
 
5. Due to the basement floor elevation of the lot which is below the basin bottom elevation, 

this office has concerns regarding subsurface flow to the basement. The engineer must 
analyze this condition to ensure that proper design of sump pump and foundation drains 
is adequate. 

 
6. The outlet pipe for BMP 7 is shown as 15” RCP on Sheet 11; however, all plan views 

indicate this pipe to be 18” RCP. This discrepancy should be corrected. 
 
7. The BMP 7 outlet structure detail shown on Sheet 11 refers to level spreader 16 detail. No 

detail has been provided. 
 
IV. GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
1. Sheet 1 indicates Sheets 1, 2, 10, 11 and 12 are to be recorded. The zoning data notes 

and waivers shown on Sheet 4 should also be placed on one of the record plans. 
 
2. We note that the Emergency Access Easement is also shown as a basin access easement 

on the approved “Huganir” plans. This should be labeled on the plans. In addition we 
recommend that the proposed driveway for Lot 2 be relocated out of this access easement. 

 
3. The bearings along the common property line of Lot 2 and Parcel #67-00-04186-00-4 

should be verified. Two different bearings are shown along this lot line. 
 
4. All references to Chester County on Sheet 9 should be corrected to Montgomery County. 
 
 The above represents all comments on this initial plan submission. The Applicant’s 
engineer should review these comments and make appropriate revisions to the plan as required. 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or need further assistance on this 
project. 

 
Very truly yours, 

        CKS ENGINEERS 
        Township Engineers 
 
         
 
        John W. Evarts, P.E.   
   
JWE/klk 
 
cc: Wendy F. McKenna, Esq., Township Solicitor (via email) 
 Casey Moore, P.E., Township Traffic Engineer (via email) 
 Arden Reserve, LLC (via email) 
 Michael Clement, Esquire (via email) 
 Bursich and Associates (via email) 
 File  
  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 31, 2025 

 

 

 

Worcester Township  

1721 S. Valley Forge Road 

Worcester, PA  19490 

 

Attention: Dan Demeno, Manager 

 

Reference: Meadowood – Health Center Expansion 

Land Development Application 

 

Dear Dan: 

 

The Meadowood team would like to once again thank the Township staff for their guidance 

as we negotiate the land development approvals process. This letter will serve as a 

transmittal of the plans and documents that are required in conjunction with that task. We 

have attached: 

 

1. 14 sets of plans dated January 31, 2025. 

 

2. The signed application. 

 

3. The application fee in the amount of $7,133.50. 

 

4. The escrow fee in the amount of $16,500.00. 

 

We do not believe that there are any waivers necessary from the Township’s subdivision 

and land development ordinance at this time. Obviously, we will await a thorough review 

by your professional team and ready ourselves to answer any questions or thoughts that 

may be revealed.  

 

The design has been fairly well thought-out. I do point out to John Evarts the complications 

regarding utility relocation. We are currently working with PECO with regard to gas, North 

Penn Water Authority regarding the water lines, and our internal mechanical and electrical 

design engineers for the connections to the building and our building systems. We 

acknowledge our obligation to provide stormwater management for the increase in 

impervious cover in this area of our campus. We are proposing the installation of an 



P a g e  | 2 
January 31, 2025 

Worcester Township  

Attention: Dan Demeno, Manager 

Reference: Meadowood – Health Center Expansion 

Land Development Application 

 

 

 
 

 

underground seepage bed to surround a section of our storm sewer collection system to 

serve this purpose. We have not completed this design as we are awaiting design 

information from our professionals with regard to other utility connections that may 

conflict with our storm system design. These components of the plan will be completed 

with the first revision of the set that speaks to any questions that may raise. 

 

We look forward to seeing you soon. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Timothy P. Woodrow, P.E. 

President 

Woodrow & Associates, Inc. 

 

Cc: Paul Nordeman, MHA, President & CEO – Meadowood Corporation 

Marlon Back, Vice President, Facilities Services – Meadowood Corporation 

John Evarts, PE, Township Engineer – CKS Engineers 

Wendy F. McKenna, Esq., Township Solicitor – Robert L. Brant & Associates 

Kate Harper, Esq. – Timony Knox, LLP 

 

 

 



ERECTED INTO A TOWNSHIP IN 1733 

TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 
AT THE CENTER POINT OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

PENNSYLVANIA 
1721 Valley Forge Road         Phone (610) 584-1410 

P.O. Box767           Fax (610) 584-8901 

Worcester, PA 19490     
 

  www.worcestertwp.com 

APPENDIX 

 

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMET APPLICATION 

 
Date of Application: _______________   Fee Paid:________________   W.T.P.C File No_________________ 

 

      Application for: 

     Preliminary Review ___________ 

     Final Review  ___________ 

1.) Property:     Address ____________________________________________________________________ 

      Location/Parcel Number _______________________________________________________ 

2.) Owner of record of land: Name _____________________________  Tel. # _________________________ 

Address:________________________________________________  Email _________________________ 

3.) Applicant:    Name________________________________________  Tel. # _________________________ 

       Address _____________________________________   Email ________________________ 

4.) Agent or Attorney, (if any): Name____________________________  Tel #_________________________ 

       Address______________________________________  Email_________________________ 

5.) Registerd Engineer or Surveyor: Name________________________  Tel #__________________________ 

       Address______________________________________  Email_________________________ 

6.) Name of Subdivision or Development:  ______________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

7.) Where deed is recorded: Book No. _________________________  Page No.  ______________________ 

8.) No. of Lots or Dwelling Units: _____________________________________________________________ 

9.) Average Lot Size: _______________________________________________________________________ 

10.) Density (dwelling units per acre): ___________________________________________________________ 

11.) Total Area to be developed or subdivided: ____________________________________________________ 

*Gross______________________________________ **Net  ____________________________________ 

 Area in flood plain (if any)  _______________________________________________________________ 

12.) Water Supply: Public system________________________ On lot system___________________________ 

13.) Sewage System: Public system______________________  On lot system___________________________ 

14.) List of all Encumbrances: 

Amount   Name & Address of Person/Firm   Bk.No.  Pg. No 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

15.) Zoning classification of subject land: ________________________________________________________

ü

The Meadowood Corp.

3205  Skippack Pike, Worcester, PA  19490

610-584-3607

pnordeman@mwood.org
SAME

Woodrow & Assoc., Inc             215-542-5648
1108 N Bethlehem Pk, Suite 5
Lower Gwynedd, PA  19002 twoodrow @woodrowinc.com

3205 Skippack Pike

ü

ü

Catherine M. Harper, Esq.            215-646-6000
400 Maryland Drive
Ft. Washington, PA  19034 charper@timoneyknox.com

Meadowood Campus - Health Care Northeast Expansion

N/A
N/A

131.087 Acres                                                             118.2056 Acres

67-00-03185-00-6, 67-00-01099-00-4, 67-00-0396-00-4, 67-00-03199-00-1

5752                                                 111
Eight personal units and fifteen (15) skilled care beds





ERECTED INTO A TOWNSHIP IN 1733 

TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 
AT THE CENTER POINT OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

PENNSYLVANIA 
1721 Valley Forge Road         Phone (610) 584-1410 

P.O. Box767           Fax (610) 584-8901 

Worcester, PA 19490     
 

 www.worcestertwp.com 

EXTENSION OF TIME 

 

 

Date: _______________ 

 

 

Attn:   Township Manager 

 Worcester Township 

 1721 Valley Forge Road 

 P.O. Box 767 

 Worcester, PA 19490 

 

Dear Township Manager: 

 

RE:  SUBDIVISION PLAN/LAND DEVELOPMET PLAN OF  _________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

On ________________________, I (we) submitted the referenced plan for official filing. 

 

Please be advised that notwithstanding any contrary provision of the Pennsylvania Municipalities 

Planning Code or the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance, this 

letter will serve as notice to Worcester Township that the requirement that action be taken on this 

Plan within ninety (90) days, is hereby waived, without limitation as to time. 

 

This wavier is granted to permit us to make such adjustments or revisions to the Plan as may be 

required during the Plan review process.  

 

If we ever deem it necessary to limit the time of the subdivision or land development review 

process, we may revoke this extension of time in writing, sent certified mail, return receipt 

requested, and the Township shall be obligated to render a decision on our plans within sixty 

(60) days after the date on which the written revocation notice was received. 

 

If the township determines that insufficient progress is being made towards concluding the 

subdivision or land development review process, the Township may revoke this extension of 

time in writing, sent regular mail and certified mail, return receipt requested. For purposes of this 

provision, the Township’s written notice shall be deemed received, if sent regular mail and 

certified mail, on the date of the written receipt on the certified mail return receipt, or, three (3) 

days after the date indicated on the Township’s notification letter in the event the certified mail is 

return as “refused”, “unclaimed”, or is otherwise returned without indication of receipt, if 

addressed as follows (or to a subsequent address specifically provided to the Township by us for 

the purpose of notice): 
 

Meadowood Campus - Health Care Addition







































  

 

 

 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
NEIL K. MAKHIJA, CHAIR 

JAMILA H. WINDER, VICE CHAIR 
THOMAS DIBELLO, COMMISSIONER 
 
WWW.MONTGOMERYCOUNTYPA.GOV 

 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  
MONTGOMERY COUNTY • PO BOX 311  

NORRISTOWN, PA 19404-0311 
 

610-278 -3722 
PLANNING@MONTGOMERYCOUNTYPA.GOV 

 
SCOTT FRANCE, AICP 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 
 
 

 
March 19, 2025 
 
Dan DeMeno, Township Manager 
Worcester Township 
PO Box 767 
1721 Valley Forge Road 
Worcester, PA, 19083 
 
Re:  MCPC #17-0040-007 
Plan Name: Meadowood Campus - Healthcare Northeast Expansion 
(37,324 sf additional development on approximately 137 acres) 
Situate: 3205 Skippack Pike 
Worcester Township 
 
Dear Mr. DeMeno: 

We have reviewed the above-referenced Meadowood Campus - Healthcare Northeast Expansion development 
in accordance with Section 502 of Act 247, "The Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code," as you requested 
on February 8, 2025. We forward this letter as a report of our review. 

BACKGROUND  

The Meadowood Corporation proposes a new three-story health center expansion with an 11,370 square foot 
footprint. The development includes reconfigured parking and loading access, adding two accessible parking 
spaces to the northeast. Additional improvements include new pedestrian pathways, an ADA accessible ramp, 
utility relocation, a large retaining wall, screen fencing/walls, plantings, a cooling tower, and an underground 
stormwater detention facility. The project will result in a net increase of 4,755 square feet of impervious surface. 
The property is located in the township’s LPD Land Preservation District.  

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE 

MONTCO 2040: A SHARD VISION: THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

This development is supported by the Montco 2040 Comprehensive plan in the Vibrant Economy theme which 
recommends …“advocating with local municipalities, health care providers, and developers to create an 
environment that meets the needs of an aging population.” (Page 71) By expanding the services offered and 
building on an existing site development, Meadowood is meeting the needs of a growing aging population.  

 



- 2 - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Township Manager March 19, 2025 

 

 WORCESTER COMPREHENSIVE PLANS 

The following goals and objectives in the Worcester 2008 Comprehensive Plan and the Draft 2022 
Comprehensive Plan update are applicable to this proposal.  

2008 WORCESTER COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (ADOPTED) 

Environmental Goals (Page 3): Preserve Steep Slope Areas: To prevent problems on sloped areas that are more 
susceptible to erosion and mass movement, including increased runoff and sedimentation from disturbed 
slopes. Also to reduce potential for unnecessary public expenditures for flood control, water quality, and 
stormwater management, and to protect habitats for important species and wildlife.  

Environment Objective: Continue to enforce the Townships steep slope ordinance to prohibit development on 
slopes that are 25% or more; minimize development or regrading on slopes 15% to 25% and continue to 
subtract steep slopes from the calculation of lot area. 

2022 WORCESTER COMP PLAN UPDATE (DRAFT) 

Environmental Resources & Infrastructure Goal: Preserve and conserve sensitive environmental features, such 
as floodplains, steep slopes, riparian buffers, forests, and wetlands  

Environmental Resources & Infrastructure Objective:  

• Decrease in % of development occurring within sensitive environmental areas (ie Steep slopes).  
• Decrease in rate of land converted to impervious surface.  
• Increase in % tree canopy coverage.  

RECOMMENDATION 

The Montgomery County Planning Commission (MCPC) generally supports the applicant‘s proposal, however, in 
the course of our review we have identified the following issues that the applicant and municipality may wish to 
consider prior to final plan approval.  Our comments are as follows: 

REVIEW COMMENTS  

COMPREHENSIVE PLANS 

A. Steep Slopes 

1. There are steep slopes and mature vegetation impacted by the design. Both comprehensive 
plans (2008 Adopted and 2022 Draft) state goals and objectives related to avoiding and 
minimizing development on environmentally sensitive land (See Comprehensive Plan 
Compliance section above). This design proposes to cut into the existing 45% to 50% steep 
slopes to construct a retaining wall ranging in height from approximately 2’ to 10’. This appears 
to be designed to accommodate a larger loading area for truck access and reconfigured parking 



- 3 - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Township Manager March 19, 2025 

 

 spaces. Additionally, several mature trees are removed reducing tree canopy coverage.  We 
recommend reconfiguring the parking and loading area to reduce the size of the retaining wall 
and reduce the amount of impervious surface proposed. See attachment E sketch for a potential 
redesign which accommodates truck access and maintains the current number of proposed 
parking spaces. This design may allow for the retention of some of the mature tree canopy to 
the north by minimizing incursions into steep slopes. It also provides opportunities to retain or 
plant new shade and evergreen tree buffer screening to shield the loading and parking areas 
from the existing adjacent residential buildings.  

LANDSCAPING 

A. Requested Waver E (Sheet 2 of 12)  

1. The applicant is requesting a waiver to “provide an Existing Tree Survey for the impacted project 
area.” The applicant also states on the Landscape Plan (Sheet 8 of 17) that “Less than 25% of the 
trees on site are proposed to be removed, therefore no replacement trees are required.” It is 
unclear if this statement is based on the entire property or the affected property area. The 
proposed affected project area contains a total of 12 deciduous and 15 evergreen trees to be 
removed that are above 6” caliper which appears to be more than 25% of the trees affected in 
the project area. In considering whether to grant this waver, the Township may want to consider 
an alternative means of compliance with the tree replacement ordinance such as requiring that  
tree replacement calculations be based on the affected project area instead of the entire site.  

B. Plant List 

1. Ilex cornuta ‘Burfordii’ (Burford Holly) is a non-native evergreen tree species. The applicant 
should consider a native evergreen species such as Ilex ‘Nellie Stevens’ (Nellie Stevens Holly) or 
equal.  

SITE DESIGN 

C. ADA Parking Space Restriping  

1. The design proposes restriping five accessible parking spaces near the main entrance of Laurel 
House. To minimize conflicts with vehicular traffic, an accessible ramp/sidewalk should be 
provided to connect each of the striped access aisles and the adjacent sidewalk (See Note 6 on 
the attachment E sketch). This provides an accessible route to the building entries via sidewalks 
instead of the vehicular drive. In addition, there is a light pole which may need to be relocated in 
the current striping configuration (see note 7 on the attachment E sketch).  

D. Lighting 

1. No Lighting Plan was provided in the preliminary set. Several light poles appear to be slated for 
removal. The proposal only includes a bollard light detail and there were no bollards labeled on 
the plans. The applicant should provide a lighting plan to illuminate the parking and loading area 



- 4 - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Township Manager March 19, 2025 

 

 in accordance with Section 150-199 and, at a minimum, designed to the lighting levels prior to 
the new site development.   

E. Retaining Wall 

1. Details for the retaining wall were not provided. It is unclear how the retaining wall will be 
constructed. If the wall is a segmental block wall, planting behind and on the top of the wall may 
be problematic and conflict with the geo grid required to stabilize the wall. The applicant’s 
designers should provide a detail of the retaining wall. All walls must meet the requirements of 
the Worcester Township Fencing and Walls ordinance (Section 150-182) 

F. Screen Fence 

1. The design proposes a “Screen Fencing” and “Screen Wall/Fencing” to minimize the views from 
the adjacent residential buildings and new addition to the parking and loading areas.  The 
proposed screen fencing detail is a 4’ height post and rail fence. This type of fence is not an 
effective visual screen. The applicant’s engineers should provide an alternative, more opaque, 
taller fence design to better screen the views from the adjacent residential buildings. All fencing 
must meet the requirements of the Worcester Township Fencing and Walls ordinance (Section 
150-182) 

CONCLUSION 

We wish to reiterate that MCPC generally supports the applicant’s proposal, but we believe that our suggested 
revisions will better achieve the Worcester Township planning objectives for site development and 
environmental goals and objectives.  

Please note that the review comments and recommendations contained in this report are advisory to the 
municipality and final disposition for the approval of any proposal will be made by the municipality.  

Should the governing body approve a final plat of this proposal, the applicant must present the plan to our office 
for seal and signature prior to recording with the Recorder of Deeds office. A paper copy bearing the municipal 
seal and signature of approval must be supplied for our files. Please print the assigned MCPC number 17-0040-
007 on any plans submitted for final recording. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

Geoffrey Vaughn, PLA, ASLA - Assistant Design Section Manager 
geoffrey.vaughn@montgomerycountypa.gov - 610-278-3751 

c: The Meadowood Corporation, Applicant 
Catherine M. Harper, Esq., Applicant’s Attorney 
Woodrow & Associates, Inc., Applicant’s Engineer 



- 5 - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Township Manager March 19, 2025 

 

 Chair/Chairperson, Municipal Planning Commission  
Dan DeMeno, Township Manager 
 

Attachment A: Aerial Image of Site 
Attachment B: Affected Project Area Site Aerial 
Attachment C: Reduced Copy of Applicant’s Proposed Site Plan 
Attachment D: Reduced Copy of Proposed Affected Project Area Site Plan 
Attachment E: Design Recommendations Sketch 

 



- Attachments - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Township Manager March 19, 2025 

ATTACHMENT A - OVERALL SITE AERIAL 

PROJECT AREA 



- Attachments - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Township Manager March 19, 2025 

ATTACHMENT B: AFFECTED PROJECT AREA SITE AERIAL 



- Attachments - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Township Manager March 19, 2025 

ATTACHMENT C: REDUCED COPY OF APPLICANT’S PROPOSED SITE PLAN 

PROJECT AREA 



- Attachments - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Township Manager March 19, 2025 

 

ATTACHMENT D: REDUCED COPY OF PROPOSED AFFECTED PROJECT AREA SITE PLAN 



- Attachments - 

 

Dan DeMeno, Township Manager March 19, 2025 

ATTACHMENT E: DESIGN RECOMMENDATIONS SKETCH 



 

425 Commerce Drive Suite 200, Fort Washington, PA 19034 

P: 215.283.9444 

bowman.com 

March 4, 2025 

 

 

Mr. Dan Demeno    

Township Manager    

Worcester Township      

1721 Valley Forge Road    

P.O. Box 767      

Worcester, PA 19490 

 

Attention:   Christian R. Jones, Assistant Township Manager 

      Mr. Robert D’Hulster, Public Works Director     

 

RE: Traffic Review #1 – Preliminary Land Development Plans  

 Proposed Meadowood Healthcare Building  

 Worcester Township, Montgomery County, PA     

 Project No. 313982-25-004      

Dear Dan: 

Per the request of the Township, Bowman Consulting Group (Bowman) has prepared this review letter which 

summarizes our initial traffic engineering review of the proposed building expansion to be located along 

the northern side of the Meadowood Drive at the southeastern end of the property adjacent to the Laurel 

House and Holly House in Worcester Township, Montgomery County, PA.  It is our understanding that the 

proposed expansion will consist of 8 personal care units and 15 skilled care beds.  This will bring the total 

number of dwelling units at the Meadowood property to 452 units (currently at 429 dwelling units of a few 

varieties).  Access to the proposed building will be provided via the existing driveway connection to the 

Meadowood Drive to the south of the Laurel House and Holly House, which ultimately accesses Skippack 

Pike (S.R. 0073).  

The following document was reviewed and/or referenced in preparation of our traffic review: 

• Preliminary Land Development Plans - Meadowood Senior Living, prepared by Woodrow & 

Associates, Inc., dated January 31, 2025. 

 

Based upon review of the document noted above, Bowman offers the following comments for consideration 

by the Township and action by the applicant: 

1. The applicant has not provided a current or updated traffic study for the site, nor any trip generation 

information specific to the addition of 23 units as a result of the building expansion for the 

Meadowood community campus.  Access continues to be proposed at the existing, single point of 

ingress/egress at Meadowood Drive and Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073), although emergency-only access 

to/from Valley Forge Road (S.R. 0363) exists for the Meadowood community.  While we do not see 

the need that a full traffic study for this incremental expansion to the Meadowood master plan is 

necessary at this time, the applicant must at a minimum prepare a vehicular trip generation letter 

for the proposed expansion on the site.  This could be accomplished by conducting existing trip 

generation counts (in and out movements) during the weekday morning and weekday afternoon 

commuter peak hours at the intersection of Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073) and Meadowood Drive over 



Mr. Dan Demeno 

  March 4, 2025 

  Project No. 313982-25-004 

 

2 of 4  bowman.com 

a minimum of three separate typical weekdays to confirm the existing trip generation of the site, 

and to use that data to help calculate an actual trip generation rate for the site to then calculate 

the number of trips that will be generated by the proposed 23 units during the peak hours.  If 

further study is needed at this time based on the information received, we will determine upon 

review of the resubmitted materials.  

 

2. The Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073) intersection at the Meadowood access has been the subject of a signal 

warrant evaluation over the years, and the necessary access and adjacent roadway improvements 

that would need to accompany any warranted signal installation.  Costs for the design & 

construction for a signalization and intersection/frontage improvements project will be an 

expensive undertaking in order to complete them.  This said, signal warrants in the most recently 

completed study we are aware of from April 2023 were not yet satisfied, and PennDOT has not 

approved a signal installation with associated roadway improvements to date for the access. An 

access and frontage improvement project desirably would realign Meadowood Drive opposite 

Hollow Road and signalize the four-legged intersection, also adding left-turn lanes for both 

Meadowood Drive and Hollow Road, as well as adding a right-turn deceleration lane for 

Meadowood Drive along Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073). Providing the turning lanes for added safety 

(especially due to the age-restricted nature of the Meadowood residents), and providing the safety 

of a signal for both minor road approaches to Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073) in this area are important 

aspects of a future project when signal warrants are met and can be approved by PennDOT before 

it is installed.   

 

With the addition of the proposed building for this project, and while it may not be necessary at 

this time, we recommend that the applicant consider evaluating the Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073) access 

and Hollow Road for signal warrants and/or determine the viability of providing additional access 

to/from the Meadowood community in light of growing traffic demands on the abutting state 

roadway network along the property.  This evaluation, if pursued, could be done in coordination 

with the capture of trip generation counts in the comment above.  Understanding there is a master 

plan for this project, and that an update to a traffic study was deferred at the time of the 

development of The Grove project on the site, we recommend that the Board consider a 

condition that both an updated traffic study be conducted for the site upon any further 

expansion to the Meadowood campus (i.e., future garden apartments, etc.) beyond the 

addition of the building proposed that is the subject to this land development application.  

The study should be complete with signal warrant evaluation alternatives for access 

location(s), as well as Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073) access/roadway frontage improvements, in 

addition to investigating possible additional access to/from the property. 

 

3. The applicant’s engineer (Woodrow) recently met with the Township Engineer and our office to 

discuss the possibility of converting the emergency-only access along Valley Forge Road (S.R. 0363) 

to an access that will be open for use by residents and visitors of Meadowood on a full-time basis 

at some future time.  The discussion was largely centered around making it a limited traffic 

movement access, allowing right-in and right-out movements only.  The applicant’s engineer must 

ensure that any change in this driveway, to be potentially converted from emergency use only to 

everyday vehicle usage, is appropriately designed based on the movements that will be permitted 

and restricted at this driveway.  Since Valley Forge Road (S.R. 0363) is a state road, the proposed 

access configuration will need to be reviewed and approved by PennDOT and the applicant will be 

required to secure new Highway Occupancy Permit (HOP) for the driveway modifications.   The 



Mr. Dan Demeno 

  March 4, 2025 

  Project No. 313982-25-004 

 

3 of 4  bowman.com 

Township and our office must be copied on all HOP submissions, as well as correspondence 

between the applicant and PennDOT, and invited to any and all meetings between the applicant 

team and these parties.      

 

4. According to Section 130-17.D(11) of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance, 

parking spaces shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide by 20 feet long.  The plans currently show several 

parking spaces in the parking area to the east of the proposed building that are 8 feet wide and/or 

18 feet long, thereby do not satisfying the ordinance requirement.   The plans should be revised to 

show these parking spaces to be a minimum of 10 feet wide by 20 feet long, or a waiver will be 

required to be requested from this ordinance requirement stating the hardship and reasons why 

the requirement cannot be met and approved by the Township Board of Supervisors.   

 

5. Adequate sight distance measurements must be provided for the intersection of the Access Drive 

and Meadowood Drive, and provisions made for it to be achieved and maintained.  Due to the 

location of the building and the curve of the road, egressing drivers from the side street will need 

to turn their head more than 90 degrees to the right and must have safe stopping sight distances 

based on approach speeds.   

 

6. Turning templates should be provided demonstrating the ability of emergency and fire vehicles 

specific to Worcester Township to maneuver into and out of the Access Drive along Meadowood 

Drive and entirely through the parking area to the east of the proposed building.  

 

7. The Township Fire Marshal should review the proposed site modifications for accessibility and 

circulation needs of emergency apparatus.  Ensure that any correspondence, including any review 

comments and/or approvals, is included in subsequent submissions.  

 

8. All curb ramps and pedestrian routes (i.e., sidewalks, crosswalks, etc.) are to be constructed in 

accordance with the current Federal and PennDOT ADA standards.  ADA ramp design and crosswalk 

striping details should be included on the detail pages of the plans.  Bowman has not reviewed the 

detailed design of any ramps internal to the site. 

 

9. ADA ramps should be shown on the plans at the following locations: 

• In the immediate vicinity of the ADA parking spaces on the northern and southern sides of the 

proposed building. 

• On both sides of the Access Drive where the crosswalk across this drive meets the sidewalk.  

 

10. All existing and proposed pavement markings and signs should be clearly labeled on the plans.  

 

11. “Pedestrian Crossing” signs should be shown on the plans on both sides of the crosswalk located 

along the Access Drive on the southeastern corner of the proposed building. 

 

12. According to the Township’s Roadway Sufficiency Analysis, the proposed development is located 

in Transportation Service Area North, which has a corresponding impact fee of $3,977 per “new” 

weekday afternoon peak hour trip and the applicant will be required to pay a Transportation Impact 

Fee in accordance with the Township’s Transportation Impact Fee Ordinance.  In order to determine 

the transportation impact fee applicable for the proposed building expansion, the applicant must 

conduct trip generation counts during the weekday afternoon peak hour at the intersection of 



Mr. Dan Demeno 

  March 4, 2025 

  Project No. 313982-25-004 

 

4 of 4  bowman.com 

Skippack Pike (S.R. 0073) and Meadowood as previously mentioned in this letter.    Upon completion 

of these counts, the applicant must calculate a trip generation rate for the site during the weekday 

afternoon peak hour that can be used to calculate the expected trip generation for the additional 

23 units being proposed for the building expansion with this application.   A final determination of 

the transportation impact fee will be reviewed and determined by our office for recommendation 

to the Board upon submission of this information.    

 

13. The Township and its engineering consultants must continue to be included in any submissions and 

meetings with PennDOT and other agencies involving Meadowood with regards to its current 

access, emergency access, signalization, and/or improvements to the adjacent roadways for the 

Meadowood site.   

 

14. In all subsequent submissions, the applicant's engineer must provide a response letter that 

describes how each specific review comment has been addressed, where each can be found in the 

plan sheets, or other materials, as opposed to providing general responses.  This will aid in the 

detailed review and subsequent review timeframes. 

 

We trust that this review letter responds to your request.  If you or the Township have any questions, or 

require clarification, please contact me, Michelle Eve, P.E., or Brian Jones, PTP, TOPS. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Casey A. Moore, P.E    

EVP/Regional Manager - Transportation 

    

BMJ/MEE/CAM 

 

cc: John Evarts, P.E., CKS Engineers (Township Engineer) 

Wendy Feiss McKenna, Esq. (Township Solicitor) 

 Devin Ralph, Esq. (Township Solicitor) 

Paul Lutz, PennDOT District 6-0 

 Catherine Harper, Esquire, Timoney Knox, LLP (Applicant’ Attorney) 

 Tim Woodrow, P.E., Woodrow & Associates, Inc. (Applicant’s Engineer) 

 
 

V:\313982 - Worcester Twp PA\313982-25-004 (TRA) - Meadowood Health Care Expansion\Engineering\Submissions\2025-02-07 LD Plans\Review\2025-03-04 Review Letter #1 - 

Meadowood (finalized).docx 



  

        March 20, 2025 

        Ref: #7571 

 

 

 

Township of Worcester 

1721 Valley Forge Road 

PO Box 767 

Worcester, PA 19490-0767 

 

Attention: Dan DeMeno, Township Manager 

 

Reference: Meadowood Healthcare Northeast Expansion 

  Land Development Review - Preliminary 

  Parcel No. 67-00-03185-00-6 

  3205 Skippack Pike    

 

Dear Dan: 

 

 Our office is in receipt of your request for a preliminary review of a healthcare expansion 
for The Meadowood Corporation, plans consisting of 17 sheets dated January 31, 2025, with no 
revisions, prepared by Woodrow & Associates, Inc. The applicant proposes the demolition of the 
existing stair tower of the Holly House building to accommodate a new 10,890-s.f. footprint, three-
story addition with site improvements, including reconfiguration of adjacent off-street parking to 
provide 17 spaces in the work area, new service walks, screen walls, and retaining walls on the 
site of an existing residential life-care facility. 
 
 We offer the following comments for consideration by the Township: 
 
I. ZONING 
 
 The following comments are based upon the provisions of the Worcester Township Zoning 
Ordinance: 
 
1. The following variances were granted by the Worcester Township Hearing Board on 

January 21, 2025 (Docket No. 2024-25): 
 
 a. Section 150-15 – to permit the construction of a residential building with a height 

of three stories, not to exceed 40 feet when the maximum permitted is 35 feet 
and/or 2.5 stories. 

 
 b. Section 150-15 – to permit the expansion of the existing health center to a height 

of three stories and/or 42 feet when the maximum permitted is 35 feet and/or 2.5 
stories. 

 
 
 
 
 



CKS ENGINEERS   March 20, 2025 

  Ref: #7571 
  Page 2 
 

2. Both variances granted must be listed on the plans with the docket number. 
 
 On Sheets 1 and 2, the Site Data Zoning Schedule should also list  stories allowed/ 

proposed. 
 
 The variances were granted by the Zoning Hearing Board with the following conditions 

which should also be listed on the plans: 
 
 a. The applicant shall construct the buildings substantially as set forth in the 

testimony and as shown in Exhibits A-3, A-7, and A-9. The applicant shall install 
and maintain a berm and evergreen landscaping, 8 feet in height at time of 
planting, substantially as shown on Exhibit A-10, to the satisfaction of the 
Township. 

 
 b. The applicant shall apply for and obtain all applicable Township, County and State 

permits and approvals relative to the use in a timely manner. 
 
 c. All use and development permitted by this Decision shall conform to the exhibits 

and testimony presented by the applicant, unless inconsistent with any specific 
conditions imposed by this Board, in which case these specific conditions shall 
take precedence. 

 
 d. Except as permitted by prior Decisions of this Board, the use of the subject property 

shall otherwise comply with the Worcester Township Code, including, but not 
limited to, all stormwater management fencing, setback, parking, lighting, sign, and 
noise regulations, and all other codes, regulations and ordinances of Worcester 
Township. 

 
 e. Pursuant to Section 150-225 of the Worcester Township Zoning Ordinance, a 

special exception or variance shall expire if the applicant fails to obtain a permit in 
connection therewith within one (1) year of the date of authorization thereof. When 
land development/subdivision approval is required, the special exception or 
variance shall expire if the applicant fails to make a diligent effort to obtain such 
approval within six (6) months following the date of the Zoning Hearing Board’s 
Order. Upon receipt of land development/subdivision approval, the special 
exception or variances shall expire if a building permit is not obtained within six (6) 
months of the date of the land development/subdivision approval. 

 
3. The existing use of the site, residential life-care facility, is permitted by Conditional Use if 

authorized by the Township Board of Supervisors, where the lot is 100 acres or larger, 
building coverage does not exceed 15% of the net lot area, and impervious coverage does 
not exceed 40% of the net lot area. The Township must determine if new Conditional Use 
approval is warranted to expand the use upon the site. (150-110.22.C & 150-11.E.7) 

 
4. The building coverage in the Campus Area Schedule on Sheet 2 must be revised to 

indicate the square footage of existing buildings that are to be removed. 
 
 
 



CKS ENGINEERS   March 20, 2025 

  Ref: #7571 
  Page 3 
 

5. The plan states that 49 parking spaces are to be removed and 34 parking spaces are to 
be added which would result in a reduction of 15 spaces from the existing number of 
spaces. The parking calculation on Sheet 1 indicates a reduction of 17 spaces. The plans 
must be revised to indicate the correct number of spaces being removed. 

 
6. The proposed reconfigured parking area will provide 17, 10 by 18-foot parking spaces; 

eight, 8 x 18-foot compact vehicle parking spaces; two, 10 x 20-foot parking spaces; and 
seven ADA accessible spaces. We note that the majority of the parking spaces are 
undersized, as Section 130-17.D.7 of the Township’s Subdivision and Land Development 
Ordinance requires all parking stalls to be not less than 10 by 20 feet. (150-158) 

 
7. The height(s) and materials of screen fencing and screen/wall fences depicted on the plan 

should be noted. (150-182) 
 
8. The plan should indicate if any new lighting is anticipated and demonstrate that no zoning 

relief is needed for any proposed lighting. We note that a lighting information table is 
shown on Sheet 17, but there are no lighting fixture locations on the plans. Heights for 
lighting in this table list mounting heights of 12 feet, which is the maximum allowed. 
Lighting cut sheets, pole details, and lighting values must be added to the plans. (150-
200) 

 
II. SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT 
 
 The following comments are based upon the requirements of Worcester Township’s 
Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 
 
1. As previously stated in this letter, parking stall dimensions shall not be less than 10 ft. x 

20 ft. (130-17.D(7)) 
 
2. The location of any lighting standards must be shown on the plans to avoid conflicts with 

any landscaping. (138-28.G(6)(g)) 
 
3. On Sheet 8, the ‘Littleleaf Linden’ has a proposed caliper of 1.5-2 inch. The minimum 

caliper for this tree is 3.5 inches. (130-28.H.1) 
 
4. Details of the proposed retaining wall must be added to the plans. The detail must include 

a note that states, “Structural plans and calculations, signed and sealed by a professional 
engineer licensed in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, must be submitted to the 
Township for review and approval before any retaining wall is constructed.” 

 
5. A timber split rail fence detail is shown on Sheet 10. The applicant should confirm this is 

the new “screen fence” shown along the northern end of the parking area. 
 
6. The truck turning movement must be revised to maneuver into the loading dock, not onto 

the trash compactor. 
 
7. Details of the cooling tower and concrete pad must be added to the plans. 
 
8. Detectable warning surfaces (DWS) must be added to the sidewalk near the new building 

and proposed parking lot and at the northern build access location. 



CKS ENGINEERS   March 20, 2025 

  Ref: #7571 
  Page 4 
 

9. A detail for the railing along the pedestrian ramp must be added to the plans. 
 
10. The following is a list of requested waivers as shown on Sheet 1: 
 

a. From Section 130-28.E(1) requiring an existing tree survey.  
 
 The applicant is proposing to use the existing tree survey only for impacted project 

area. 
 
b. From Section 130-28G.(4) requiring street trees be installed with any new 

subdivision use or land development. 
 
 The plans do not propose any supplemental street trees. 
 
c. From Section 130-28.G.6.g requiring no more than 15 parking spaces shall be 

placed in a continuous row without an intervening raised planting island of at least 
10 ft. in width. ( 130-28.G.6.b) 

 
 The plans propose a parking row of 17 spaces without a planting island. 
 
d. From Section 130-33.C requiring all existing features 500 ft. from the project 

boundary be shown on the plans. The waiver request states that an aerial 
photograph to fulfill requirements of showing existing features within 500 ft. of the 
project tract.  

 
 The aerial plan must be included in future submissions. (130-33.C) 
 

III. GRADING, STORMWATER MANAGEMENT/STORM DRAINAGE AND EROSION AND 
SEDIMENT CONTROLS 

 
 The following comments are based upon the requirements of Worcester Township’s 
Stormwater Management Ordinance (SMO): 
 
1. The project proposes to disturb 0.64 acres. The applicant is made aware that if the limit of 

disturbance exceeds one acre, an NPDES permit and Adequacy for Erosion and Sediment 
Control will be required. This office is aware of a separate staging area located on the 
Meadowood site that may be required to be added to the healthcare expansion 
development. The applicant’s engineer must provide confirmation from the Montgomery 
County Conservation District that the two projects do not need to be combined.  

 
2. There appears to be a stormwater facility proposed in the new parking lot. The facility must 

be labeled and the dimensions of the stormwater facility should be provided on the plans. 
(129-12.H)(129-14.B.5) 

 
3. A detail and calculations pertaining to the seepage bed must be added to the plans. 
 
4. On both Sheet 6 and Sheet 9, there is a missing invert for structure D104. 
 
5. Sheet 6 has a rim elevation for Manhole D105 of 255.73 and Sheet 9 has a grate elevation 

of 255.66. The plans must be revised accordingly.  



CKS ENGINEERS   March 20, 2025 

  Ref: #7571 
  Page 5 
 

6. All proposed erosion and sediment controls must be added to the plan on Sheet 12.  
 
7. Additional top of wall and bottom of wall elevations must be added to the plans. 
 
8. Storm sewer calculations must be provided to demonstrate that the existing storm sewer 

can convey the increase in runoff from the proposed impervious areas. 
 
9. All utility crossings must be shown on the profiles. 
 
10. It appears that the roof drain from existing Units 110/111 will discharge directly upstream 

of the relocated electrical transformer. The engineer should provide a revision to reroute 
the existing roof drain outflow around the transformer. 

 
11. A site specific construction sequence is required to be included on Sheet 13. 
 
12. A profile from the existing inlet to Inlet D104 must be added to the plans. 
 
13. Additional spot elevations and grading must be added to the courtyard area. 
 
14. Inlet D106 must be shown on the profiles on Sheet 9. (130-33.F.1) 
 
15. Additional cover over pipe D101 – D100 is required. Further, this pipe shall be RCP. 
 
16. Pipe D101 – D 100 is proposed underneath the proposed footing of the proposed building 

expansion. 
 
IV. SANITARY SEWER 
 
1. The size, slope, and material of the sewer lateral must be added to the plans, along with 

a profile. 
 
2. The existing utilities to the existing maintenance office and storage shed must be shown 

to be removed or, at a minimum, capped. 
 
3. The new sanitary sewer manhole must be indicated as a doghouse manhole on the plans. 

A doghouse manhole detail must be added to the plans.  
 
4. The applicant will be required to buy additional sewer capacity in conjunction with the 

healthcare building expansion. The applicant must provide flow calculations to determine 
the required EDUs. We are currently evaluating the Valley Green WWTP and the 
Meadowood Pump Station to determine if capacity exists at these facilities. We will work 
with the applicant directly to address any sewer issues. 

 
V. GENERAL 
 
 The following are general comments and consideration generated during the course of 
our review: 
 
1. Legend(s) should be added to the plan sheets throughout the plan set, as applicable. 
 



CKS ENGINEERS   March 20, 2025 

  Ref: #7571 
  Page 6 
 

2. Truck turning movements for emergency services must be added to the plan. 
 
3. The height of the Cooling Tower Building must be provided on the plans. 
 
4. The proposed courtyard is labeled as landscaped on Sheet 5. Details of the landscaping 

should be provided on the landscaping plan, Sheet 8.  
 
5. Approval from the Traffic Engineer is required. 
 
6. Approval from the Fire Marshal is required. 
 
7. A review from the Montgomery County Planning Commission is required. 
 
8. It appears Sheets 16 and 17 are duplicated.  Sheet 17 should be deleted or revised if 

intended to illustrate individual inlet drainage areas. 
 
 The above represents our comments on this initial plan submission. The plans must be 
revised accordingly and resubmitted for further review. 
 
 Please contact me if you have any questions or need additional assistance on these plans. 
 
        Very truly yours, 
        CKS ENGINEERS 
        Township Engineers 
 
         
 
        John W. Evarts, P.E.   
    
JWE/klk 
 
cc: Christian Jones, Assistant Township Manager 
 Wendy F. McKenna, Esq., Township Solicitor 
 Casey Moore, P.E., Township Traffic Engineer 
 The Meadowood Corp., Applicant 
 Catherine Harper, Esquire, Timoney Knox L.L.P. 
 Woodrow & Associates, Inc. 
 George DiPersio, CKS Engineers 
 File 
 









































               MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
To: Worcester Township Planning Commission 
From: Dan DeMeno, Township Manager 
Date: March 12, 2025 
Subject: Review and Recommendation Vote on Proposed Accessory Structures Ordinance 

 
Overview 
The Township is considering an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance that revises the regulations 
governing accessory structures. The proposed Accessory Structures Ordinance is designed to clarify 
definitions, establish clear setback and height requirements, and modernize the Township's regulations 
to better reflect the needs of residents and property owners. 
As part of this process, I am requesting that the Planning Commission review the proposed ordinance 
and provide a recommendation vote for adoption. 

 
Key Changes in the Proposed Ordinance 

1. Clearer Definitions: The new ordinance defines key terms such as Accessory Structure, Barn, 
Greenhouse, and Silo, ensuring that all references in the zoning code are consistent and easy to 
interpret. 

2. Updated Setback Rules: Instead of a single setback rule for all structures, the new ordinance 
establishes setback distances based on the size of the structure: 

o Small structures (up to 250 sq. ft.): 10 feet from property lines 
o Medium structures (251–1,200 sq. ft.): 15 feet 
o Large structures (1,201–2,999 sq. ft.): 20 feet 
o Very large structures (3,000+ sq. ft.): 30 feet 

3. Height Limits Adjusted for Structure Size: 
o Small structures: 12 feet max 
o Medium structures: 15 feet max 
o Large structures: 25 feet max 
o Very large structures: Same as the principal building height allowed in the zoning 

district 
4. Standardized Rules for Common Accessory Uses: 

o Garages: Detached garages no longer have a special height allowance (previously 
allowed up to 20 feet, now limited based on structure size). 

o Pools: Same setback requirements as before (25 feet minimum; 50 feet in agricultural 
districts). 

o Private Sports Courts: Same setback and lighting restrictions as before. 
o Barns and Stables: Still permitted on properties of 3 acres or more with the same 

animal density allowances. 

 
Why This Update is Necessary 
The current zoning ordinance contains outdated and inconsistent language regarding accessory 



structures. This has led to confusion for property owners, unnecessary zoning variances, and 
enforcement challenges. The new ordinance aims to: 

• Provide Clarity: Definitions and rules are clearly written and organized in one section. 
• Ensure Fairness: Standardized setbacks and height limits based on structure size create a level 

playing field for all properties. 
• Improve Zoning Administration: Eliminating contradictions in the code makes it easier for staff 

and property owners to understand and apply the rules correctly. 
 

The Planning Commission’s review and vote are essential to move this ordinance forward to the Board 
of Supervisors for final approval. 

 
Request for Action 
I respectfully request that the Planning Commission vote on a recommendation for the adoption of the 
proposed Accessory Structures Ordinance. Your feedback will help ensure that this ordinance serves 
the best interests of the Township while maintaining consistency with our zoning regulations. 
If you have any questions or require further clarification, please feel free to reach out prior to the 
meeting. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Dan DeMeno 
Township Manager 
 



 
 

 

 

 

 
TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
 

ORDINANCE 2025-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF THE TOWNSHIP CODE 
REGARDING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND ASSOCIATED DEFINITIONS 

 
 

WHEREAS, from time to time, corrections and other revisions are required to be made to the 
Township Code of Worcester Township;  
 
WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania mandates that municipalities have published in a 
newspaper of general circulation all proposed ordinances that make such corrections and revisions, 
at a great expense to municipalities;  
 
WHEREAS, Worcester Township consolidates such corrections and revisions into one proposed 
ordinance, in lieu of individual ordinances, so as to minimize the expense incurred by the taxpayers 
in meeting this unfunded advertisement mandate; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Worcester Township has determined that it is in the best 
interests of the Township to amend the Township Code as set forth herein below. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of Worcester Township, Montgomery County, 
Pennsylvania, hereby ordains and enacts as follows: 
 
SECTION I 
 

1. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-9 shall be modified as follows: 

a. Definition of Accessory Building shall be modified to read:  See Accessory 
Structure 

b. Definition of Accessory Structure shall be added and read:  A structure that is 
accessory to and incidental to that of the principal structure(s) and that is located 
on the same lot. 

c. Definition of Barn shall be added and read: a large farm building used for storing 
grain, hay or straw, or for housing livestock. 

d. Definition of Greenhouse shall be added and read:  A building in which plants are 
grown that need protection from cold weather. 

e. Definition of Silo shall be added and read: A tall cylinder used for bulk storage of 
agricultural products. 

a.f. Definition of Agricultural Products shall be added and read:  Any commodity or 
product that comes from agriculture, whether raw or processed, and is intended 
for human or animal consumption. 

 
SECTION II 
 

1. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-177 shall be deleted in its entirety, and replaced 

Commented [DD1]: Adding multiple definitions.  
Primarily, removing accessory building and replacing with 
accessory structure as a catch all for all structures that are not 
the primary ones.  Added definitions for the rest are there as 
they are mentioned multiple times in other areas of the 
zoning ordinance with no definitions at all. 



 
 

 

 

 

to read: 
 

A. Accessory uses and structures to a single-family detached residential use shall 
be regulated as follows: 

(1) In the AGR, R-175, and R-AG-175 Districts, structures accessory to single-
family residential uses, except those regulated in Subsection A(2) through (9) 
below, shall be located in the rear yard or side yard only, and no closer than 
15 feet to a property line. In all other districts, and at all properties created 
pursuant to Option 1 or Option 2, as set forth in Article XVIA, Conservation 
Subdivisions, structures accessory to single- family residential uses, except 
those regulated in Subsection A(2) through (9) below, accessory structures 
shall be located in the rear yard or side yard only; said accessory structures 
may be erected in the rear yard not closer than 10 feet to the rear property 
linesubject to the following requirements: 

 

i. Accessory structures 250 square feet or less in gross floor area have a 
minimum rear and side setback requirement of 10 feet and a maximum 
height of 12 feet 

ii. Accessory structures between 250 square feet and 1200 square feet in 
gross floor area have a minimum rear and side setback requirement of 
15 feet and a maximum height of 15 feet. 

iii. Accessory structures 1200 square feet or greater and less than 3000 
square feet in gross floor area have a minimum rear and side setback 
requirement of 20 feet and a maximum height of 25 feet. 

iv. Accessory structures - 3000 square feet or greater in gross floor area 
have a minimum rear and side setback requirement of 30 feet and a 
maximum height of no greater than the maximum allowed principal 
building height in that location. 

i.v. This section shall take primacy over all other references to accessory 
structure dimensions. 

(2) Unless otherwise permitted below, accessory structures in any zoning district 
shall not be higher than 15 feet. [Amended 5-16-2018 by Ord. No. 277; 5-19-
2021 by Ord. No. 284] 

(3) Private garages  (whether attached or detached) may not encroach on any 
yard setback and must be located entirely within the building envelope of the 
lot on which they are located. Attached garages shall not exceed the height 
restriction for principal buildings in the applicable zoning district, and detached 
garages shall not exceed 20 feet in height.such  unoccupied and 

(4)(2) Private swimming pools shall be constructed in accordance with the 
applicable Township ordinances and shall be located entirely within the rear 
yard of the lot on which the pool is located and at least 10 feet behind the closest 
part of the main building. However, in no case shall the distance from the pool 
to the side or rear property line be less than 25 feet. In the AGR, R-175, and 
R-AG-175 districts, excluding properties created pursuant to Option 1 or Option 
2, as set forth in Article XVIA, Conservation Subdivisions, the distance from the 
pool to the side and rear property lines shall be not less than 50 feet. The water 

Commented [DD2]: This is a wholesale replacement of 
this section.  It removes “private garages” as a specific thing 
with specific requirements and merges them into “accessory 
structures”.  The new setbacks and sizes are based off of lot 
size and the size of the proposed accessory structure.  This 
will allow larger lots larger accessory buildings with 
appropriate setbacks and greater heights allowed with those 
larger setbacks. 

Commented [DD3R2]: Response to feedback:  Have 
eliminated size delineation to simplify.  Now is self limiting. 

Commented [DD4]: Added as a catchall - I have reviewed 
the ordinance to try and ensure that there are no 
condritications left - but if I miss one, this will ensure 
Zoning Officers will know where to look 

Commented [DD5]: Removed this section as it will be at 
odds with newly revised Section A(1) as far as structure 
height.  Heights are now addressed in that section. 



 
 

 

 

 

edge shall be the line for measurement of these setbacks. All filters, heaters 
and accessory structures incidental thereto shall meet the same setback 
criteria. Freestanding spas and hot tubs shall be exempt from the requirement 
to be located at least 10 feet behind the closest part of the main building. 
[Amended 5-19-2021 by Ord. No. 284] 

 
(5)(3) Private tennis courts and private sports courts and all facilities incidental 

thereto shall be located on a lot 60,000 square feet or larger and in the rear 
yard only. Except as set forth below for lighted courts, a private tennis court 
shall not be less than 50 feet from the side and rear property lines, and a private 
sports court shall not be less than 75 feet from the side and rear property lines. 
A vegetative screening landscape buffer in accordance with the Worcester 
Township Landscape Ordinance requirements for rear and side yards as set 
forth in § 130-28 of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land Development 
Ordinance shall be provided for all private tennis courts and private sports 
courts and all facilities incidental thereto. To the extent required by the 
Township Engineer, all tennis courts and sports courts shall have stormwater 
management facilities. All required stormwater management facilities shall 
be approved by the Township Engineer. 

The lighting of a private tennis court or private sports court shall conform to § 150-200. 
Any lighted private tennis court or sports court shall not be less than 100 feet from the 
side and rear property lines. No tennis court or sports court shall be illuminated after 
9:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday, or after 10:00 p.m. on Friday and Saturday. 

(6)(4) Private stables for the keeping of horses and livestock and barns shall be 
permitted on properties having a gross lot area of three acres or more. A gross 
lot area of three acres shall allow a maximum of two large animals (e.g., horses, 
cattle, llamas). Two small animals (e.g., goats, sheep, mini horses, ponies, 
yearling horses or cattle, donkeys) shall be the equivalent of one large animal. 
Each additional acre of gross lot area shall allow the keeping of one additional 
large animal or the equivalent. All grazing areas shall be suitably fenced to 
contain the animals at all times. All buildings and structures (including rings, 
but not including fencing) used for the housing, stabling, training, and 
recreational enjoyment of such animals shall be located within the building 
envelope and shall be no higher than 35 feet. 

(7)(5) Decorative structures such as garden trellises, arbors, statues, benches, 
and the like, but specifically not including storage units, sheds, greenhouses, 
or other work areas, may be located no closer than 15 feet to any property line, 
but not within the ultimate right- of-way of any road. 

(8)(6) Private mailboxes shall be located as required by the United States Postal 
Service. Private newspaper boxes may be located adjacent to private 
mailboxes and no closer to the cartway than a private mailbox. 

(9)(7) Private driveways shall be regulated by § 150-155, and private parking 
spaces shall be regulated by § 150-153. 

(10)(8) Structures associated with public or private utilities (such as water, 
stormwater, sanitary waste, power, fuel, telephone, and cable) to serve 
permitted agricultural and single- family residential uses shall be exempt from 
the setbacks in this section. 

B. Accessory uses authorized by this chapter shall not be interpreted to include 
nonpermanent structures for the sale of goods, which are prohibited by Chapter 

Commented [DD6]: Added barns to this.  Barns with no 
electric, water, etc., are agricultural buildings, but with those 
features, they are accessory structures like any other.  
Adding this here I believe will fit the intent of this section 
while giving the zoning officer more clarity. 



 
 

 

 

 

119,1 except as otherwise set forth therein. 

C. Private or public school uses. Accessory structures such as backstops, 
dugouts/team structures, retaining walls, scoreboards, bleachers (permanent or 
movable), benches, goals (permanent or movable), or similar accessory structures 
associated with outdoor sports and athletic facilities may be located or erected within 
50 feet of a front lot line or 40 feet of any other property line subject to the following: 
[Added 1-15-2014 by Ord. No. 248] 

(1) Backstops shall be permitted on any baseball or softball field but shall be 
limited to a maximum height of 40 feet; 

(2) Scoreboards shall be permitted and shall not be considered signs so long as 
the scoreboard complies with the following: 

(a) Scoreboards shall not contain any advertisement for any company, product, or 
service; 

(b) Scoreboards shall be limited to a maximum size of 36 feet by 10 feet; 

(c) Scoreboards shall be limited to one per field; 

(d) Scoreboards shall be limited to a maximum height, when mounted, of 20 feet from 
average surrounding grade within a stadium and 15 feet when mounted at all other 
fields on a single property; and 

(e) Scoreboards, if illuminated, shall: 

[1] Be internally illuminated LED displaying only the score and necessary game 
information and shall be illuminated only during the time of play and for a 
maximum period of 30 minutes following the end of play; and 

[2] Neither cast any illumination off of the subject property nor create a nuisance 
or intrusion to the privacy of adjacent residential property owners or the public; 

(3) Dugouts or team shelters shall be limited to two per field, one for the home 
team and one for the visiting team; 

(4) Dugouts or team shelters shall be a maximum size of 12 feet by 50 feet; 

(5) No structure shall be located or erected so as to interfere with the sight triangle 
of any intersection; and 

(6) Fences and walls shall be regulated by § 150-182LJ. 
 
SECTION III 
 

1. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-15, Subsection A shall be deleted in its entirety 

2. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-23, Subsection B shall be deleted in its entirety. 

3. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-25.4, Subsection B shall be deleted in its entirety. 

4. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-31, Subsection A shall be deleted in its entirety. 

5. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-39, Subsection A shall be deleted in its entirety. 

Commented [DD7]: Change to meet new section number 
in pending fence section amendment. 

Formatted: Not Expanded by / Condensed by 



 
 

 

 

 

6. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-55, Subsection A shall be deleted in its entirety. 

7. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-71, Subsection B shall be deleted in its entirety. 

8. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-79, Subsection B shall be deleted in its entirety. 

9. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-87, Subsection A(3) shall be deleted in its entirety. 

(6)10. Chapter 150, Zoning, Section §150-95, Subsection B shall be deleted in its entirety. 
 

 

Formatted: Right:  0.08", Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Commented [DD8]: These sections are all to be removed 
as they are a per district height restriction that conflicts with 
the new changes 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial


	03.a.002 2025 02 27 - PC Minutes - DRAFT
	04.a.001 LD 2025-04 - Land Development Application Package
	LD 2025-04 - Land Development Application Package.pdf (p.1-4)
	2025-01-22 1038 WindyHillRd_P-F_ Twp cover ltr.pdf (p.1-2)
	LD 2025-04 - Land Development Application Package.pdf (p.3-4)

	1038 WindyHillRd_2 Lot_Twp Ext of Time -signed.pdf (p.5-6)

	04.a.002 LD 2025-04 - Plan Set  - 1-15-25
	Sheets and Views
	1 WP208161-01 - TS-01
	2 WP208161-01 - SD-01
	3 WP208161-01 - EC-01
	4 WP208161-01 - PN-01
	5 WP208161-01 - IP-01
	6 ES-01
	7 ES-02
	8 ES-03
	9 ES-04
	10 PC-01
	11 PC-02
	12 PC-03


	04.a.003 LD 2025-04 - Waiver Requests - 1-15-25
	04.a.005 LD 2025-04 - MCPC Review #1 - 2-28-25
	Background
	Recommendation
	Review Comments
	SITE DESIGN
	Transportation
	1) Emergency Access Easement.  The township should ensure that any necessary legal mechanisms are in place to allow for the emergency access driveway to overlap with the everyday driveway access for Lot 2.


	Conclusion
	AttachmentS

	04.a.006 LD 2025-04 - Bowman Traffic Review #1 - 3-6-25
	04.a.007 7201-175 CKS to DeMeno 3-20-25
	04.b.001 LD 2025-05 - Land Development Application Package
	Transmittal-Ltr - Twp Health Care Submittal 2025-01-31.pdf (p.1-2)
	LD 2025-05 - Land Development Application Package.pdf (p.3-6)

	04.b.002 LD 2025-05 - Plan Set  - 1-31-25
	D21_Sh01_Cover
	D21_Sh02_Record
	D21_Sh03_EXFEA
	D21_Sh04_DEMO
	D21_Sh05_Layout
	D21_Sh06_Grading
	D21_Sh07_Utility with DEMO
	D21_Sh08_Landscape
	D21_Sh09_Profiles
	D21_Sh10_Details
	D21_Sh11_Details
	D21_Sh12_E&S Plan
	D21_Sh13_E&S Specs
	D21_Sh14_E&S Details
	D21_Sh15_DAB-Pre
	D21_Sh16_DAB-Post
	D21_Sh17_DAB-Inlet

	04.b.003 LD 2025-05 - MCPC Review #1 - 3-19-25
	Background
	Comprehensive Plan Compliance
	Recommendation
	Review Comments
	COMPREHENSIVe PLANS
	A. Steep Slopes
	1. There are steep slopes and mature vegetation impacted by the design. Both comprehensive plans (2008 Adopted and 2022 Draft) state goals and objectives related to avoiding and minimizing development on environmentally sensitive land (See Comprehensi...


	Landscaping
	A. Requested Waver E (Sheet 2 of 12)
	1. The applicant is requesting a waiver to “provide an Existing Tree Survey for the impacted project area.” The applicant also states on the Landscape Plan (Sheet 8 of 17) that “Less than 25% of the trees on site are proposed to be removed, therefore ...

	B. Plant List
	1. Ilex cornuta ‘Burfordii’ (Burford Holly) is a non-native evergreen tree species. The applicant should consider a native evergreen species such as Ilex ‘Nellie Stevens’ (Nellie Stevens Holly) or equal.


	SITE DESIGN
	C. ADA Parking Space Restriping
	1. The design proposes restriping five accessible parking spaces near the main entrance of Laurel House. To minimize conflicts with vehicular traffic, an accessible ramp/sidewalk should be provided to connect each of the striped access aisles and the ...

	D. Lighting
	1. No Lighting Plan was provided in the preliminary set. Several light poles appear to be slated for removal. The proposal only includes a bollard light detail and there were no bollards labeled on the plans. The applicant should provide a lighting pl...

	E. Retaining Wall
	1. Details for the retaining wall were not provided. It is unclear how the retaining wall will be constructed. If the wall is a segmental block wall, planting behind and on the top of the wall may be problematic and conflict with the geo grid required...

	F. Screen Fence
	1. The design proposes a “Screen Fencing” and “Screen Wall/Fencing” to minimize the views from the adjacent residential buildings and new addition to the parking and loading areas.  The proposed screen fencing detail is a 4’ height post and rail fence...



	Conclusion
	Attachment A - Overall Site Aerial
	Attachment B: Affected Project Area Site Aerial
	Attachment C: Reduced Copy of Applicant’s Proposed Site Plan
	Attachment D: Reduced Copy of Proposed Affected Project Area Site Plan
	Attachment E: Design Recommendations Sketch

	04.b.004 LD 2025-05 - Bowman Traffic Review #1 - 3-4-25
	04.b.005 7571 CKS to DeMeno 3-20-25
	05.a.001 TA 2025-01 Primrose - Text Amendment Application
	05.b.001 Memo - Accessory Structures Draft Zoning Amendment
	05.b.002 Accessory Structures DRAFT



